
City of Kelowna
Public Hearing

AGENDA
 

Tuesday, May 27, 2014

6:00 pm

Council Chamber

City Hall, 1435 Water Street

Pages

1. Call to Order

THE CHAIR WILL CALL THE HEARING TO ORDER:

1.     (a)    The purpose of this Hearing is to consider
certain bylaws which, if adopted, shall amend Kelowna
2030 - Official Community Plan Bylaw No. 10500 and
Zoning Bylaw No. 8000.

(b)   All persons who believe that their interest in property
is affected by the proposed bylaws shall be afforded a
reasonable opportunity to be heard or to present written
submissions respecting matters contained in the bylaws
that are the subject of this hearing.  This Hearing is open to
the public and all representations to Council form part of
the public record.  A live audio feed may be broadcast and
recorded by Castanet.

(c)   All information, correspondence, petitions or reports
that have been received concerning the subject bylaws
have been made available to the public.  The
correspondence and petitions received after May 13, 2014
(date of notification) are available for inspection during the
course of this hearing and are located on the information
table in the foyer of the Council Chamber.

(d)   Council debate on the proposed bylaws is scheduled
to take place during the Regular Council meeting after the
conclusion of this Hearing. It should be noted, however,
that for some items a final decision may not be able to be
reached tonight.

1



(e)   It must be emphasized that Council will not receive
any representation from the applicant or members of the
public after conclusion of this Public Hearing.

2. Notification of Meeting

The City Clerk will provide information as to how the
Hearing was publicized.

3. Individual Bylaw Submissions

3.1 Bylaw No. 10943 (OCP14-0009) - Miscellaneous
Housekeeping Amendments, City of Kelowna

5 - 22

To proceed with miscellaneous amendments to the
Official Community Plan.

3.2 Bylaw No. 10959 (Z14-0005) - 669 McClure Road,
Heritage Log Structures Inc.

23 - 32

To consider a proposal to rezone the subject
property from the RU1 - Large Lot Housing zone to
the RU2 - Medium Lot Housing zone.

3.3 WITHDRAWN BY THE APPLICANT - Bylaw No. 10960
(OCP13-0003) and Bylaw No. 10961 (Z13-0004) -
1800 Crosby Road, DRS Ventures Ltd.

33 - 73

To amend the Official Community Plan in order to
change the Future Land Use Designation of a
portion of the subject property from the Single/Two
Unit Residential, Multiple Unit Residential (Low
Density) and Major Park/Open Space designations
to the Single/Two Unit Residential, Multiple Unit
Residential (Low Density) and Major Park/Open
Space designations. and to rezone a portion of the
subject property from the A1 - Agriculture 1 zone to
the P3 - Parks and Open Space and RU2 - Medium
Lot Housing zones.

3.4 Bylaw No. 10956 (OCP14-0001) and Bylaw No.
10957 (Z14-0001) - Various Addresses on Clement
Avenue, St. Paul Street and Richter Street, City of
Kelowna & Miles Vucicevic

74 - 90

To amend the Official Community Plan in order to
change the future land use designations of the
subject properties from the COMM-Commercial
d e s i g n a t i o n  t o  t h e  E D I N S T  -
Educational/Institutional designation and to rezone
portions of the subject properties from the I2 -

2



General Industrial and I4 - Central Industrial zones
to the P1 - Major Institutional zone in order to permit
the development of the Kelowna Police Services
Buidling.

4. Termination

5. Procedure on each Bylaw Submission

(a)     Brief description of the application by City Staff
(Land Use Management);

(b)     The Chair will request that the City Clerk indicate
all information, correspondence, petitions or reports
received for the record.

(c)     The applicant is requested to make representation
to Council regarding the project and is encouraged to
limit their presentation to 15 minutes.

(d)     The Chair will call for representation from the
public in attendance as follows:

    (i)     The microphone at the public podium has been
provided for any person(s) wishing to make
representation at the Hearing.

     (ii)     The Chair will recognize ONLY speakers at the
podium.

     (iii)     Speakers are encouraged to limit their remarks
to 5 minutes, however, if they have additional
information they may address Council again after all
other members of the public have been heard a first
time.

(e)     Once the public has had an opportunity to
comment, the applicant is given an opportunity to
respond to any questions raised.  The applicant is
requested to keep the response to a total of 10 minutes
maximum.

(f)     Questions by staff by members of Council must be
asked before the Public Hearing is closed and not during
debate of the bylaw at the Regular Meeting, unless for
clarification.

(g)     Final calls for respresentation (ask three times). 

3



Unless Council directs that the Public Hearing on the
bylaw in question be held open, the Chair shall state to
the gallery that the Public Hearing on the Bylaw is closed.

Note:  Any applicant or member of the public may use
visual aids (e.g. photographs, sketches, slideshows, etc.)
to assist in their presentation or questions.  The computer
and ELMO document camera at the public podium are
available.  Please ask staff for assistance prior to your
item if required.

4



Report to Council 
 

 

Date: 

 
April 28, 2014 
 

File: 
 

1200-30  OCP14-0009 / BL 10943 

To:  
 

City Manager 
 

From: 
 

Graham March, Planner Specialist 

Subject: 
 

2014-05-05 Report - OCP14-0009 Proposed Miscellaneous Amendments 
(BL10943) 

 

Recommendation: 
 
THAT OCP Bylaw Text Amendment No. OCP14-0009 to amend Kelowna 2030 – Official 
Community Plan Bylaw No. 10500 as outlined in the Report of the Planner Specialist dated 
April 28, 2014 be considered by Council;  
 
AND THAT Council considers the public process outlined in the Report of the Planner 
Specialist dated April 28, 2014 to be appropriate consultation for the purpose of Section 879 
of the Local Government Act;  
 
AND FURTHER THAT OCP Bylaw Text Amendment No. OCP14-0009 be forwarded to a Public 
Hearing for further consideration; 
 
Purpose:  
 
To proceed with miscellaneous amendments to the Official Community Plan (OCP) based on 
staff initiated policy and map changes. 
 
Background: 
 
As a result of the continued growth and evolution of the City including new land acquisitions, 
alignment with Council and provincial policy, and on-going development approvals, Staff has 
identified changes that are necessary for the OCP to keep pace. The full list of proposed 
amendments is itemized in Attachment 1. Some highlights include: 
 

 Delete Policy 5.5.1 Table – City Centre building height is regulated through the Zoning 

Bylaw and individual height exemptions are to be dealt with via Development Variance 

Permits. 

 Delete Policy 5.25.1 – The Development Application Procedures Bylaw gives Staff the 
opportunity to request a Retail Impact Analysis pending on the scale/scope of an 
individual application, and therefore is unnecessary to be included in OCP policy. 

5



 Revise OCP Evaluation Checklist - Amend the checklist for additional clarity and to be 
more concise. 

 Addition of a Sign Design Guideline - Add a new policy (17.4) to ensure that context 
sensitive signs (form, character, and placement) are used for buildings with historical 
significance. 

 Amend Chapter 14 (Sections C. and E. Exemptions) – Exempting additions to Single 
Family Dwellings for secondary suites less than 30 sq. m. from a Development Permit 
application to streamline these application types. 

 Amend Future Land Use Map 4.1 - Existing Avonlea Neighbourhood Park playground is 
shown as S2/RES and should be designated as PARK to reflect actual land use.  
Additionally, boundary adjustments are required to reflect actual lot lines throughout 
the city. 

 
As adjustments to the GIS legal lot layer occur, amendments are recommended to ensure that 
the Future Land Use map matches the revised GIS lots layer. Amendments are also suggested 
to ensure the maps reflect recent park land acquisitions and changes to Development Permit 
areas. Proposed mapping changes are shown in Attachments 3 through 12.  
 
The proposed amendment to the Hazardous Conditions Development Permit Areas map is 
required to remove areas unaffected by the hazards listed in the OCP, such as erosion 
potential, soil composition, and steep slopes.  The proposed changes (which are a result of 
inconsistencies discovered through various DP applications) will result in fewer properties 
requiring a Hazardous Conditions DP. 
 
Internal Circulation: 
Divisional Director, Community Planning & Real Estate 
Director, Subdivision, Agriculture & Environment Services 
Manager, Urban Planning 
Manager, Parks & Building Planning 
 
Legal/Statutory Authority: 
Local Government Act Part 26: Division 2 – Official Community Plans, Sections 875 - 882. 
 
Legal/Statutory Procedural Requirements: 
Local Government Act Section 879 (1) specifies that a local government must, during the 
development, repeal or amendment of an official community plan, provide one or more 
opportunities it considers appropriate for consultation with persons, organizations and 
authorities it considers will be affected.  This consultation is in addition to the required 
public hearing.   
 
External Agency/Public Comments: 
The requirement for consultation under Section 879 (1) of the Local Government Act was 
addressed by advertising in the March 28 and April 4, 2014 Capital News and posted the 
information on the website. 
 
No comments were received as of April 11, 2014 (the day that all comments were due). 
 
Existing Policy: 
Kelowna OCP 2030 Bylaw 10500 
 

6



Considerations not applicable to this report: 
Financial/Budgetary Considerations: 
Personnel Implications: 
Communications Comments: 
Alternate Recommendation: 
 
Submitted by: 
 
 
Graham March,  
Planner Specialist, Policy and Planning 
 
 
Gary Stephen,  
Manager, Long Range Planning 
 
 
 
Approved for inclusion:                  Danielle Noble-Brandt,  
      Department Manager, Policy & Planning 
 
Attachments 
 
Attachment 1 – 2014-04-28 Proposed OCP Miscellaneous Amendments 
Attachment 2 – 2014-04-28 Proposed OCP Evaluation Checklist 
Attachments 3 to 12 – 2014-04-28 Proposed Map Amendments 
 
cc:  General Manager, Community Sustainability   

Community Planning Manager 
Urban Land Use Manager 

 Manager, Parks & Building Planning 

  

7



Attachment 1 - Proposed Miscellaneous Amendments 

 

Staff Initiated OCP Amendments – Miscellaneous (OCP14-0009)  

(New wording underlined; wording to be deleted in strikethrough) 

 

1. Delete Table from Objective 5.15 Policy .1 - Chapter 5 – Development Process – Building Height 

Does Not Apply to the following (table only).  (proposed new wording is underlined; deleted 

wording in strikethrough):    

 

Policy .1 Building Height Does Not Apply to the following: 

Civic Address Legal Address 

526 Doyle Avenue Lot A, District Lot 139, ODYD, Plan EPP9526 

1368 St. Paul Street Lot A, District Lot 139, ODYD, Plan KAP87835 

 

2. Delete existing Policy 5.25.1 – Chapter 5 – Development Process – Retail Impact Analysis.  

(wording to be deleted in strikethrough).  All policies following will need to be renumbered 

accordingly: 

Retail Impact Analysis. Commercial developments greater than 2,300 m2 that would 

require an amendment to the OCP may be required to prepare, at the discretion of 

staff and at the applicants’ expense, a Retail Impact Analysis (see Chapter 17 for a 

definition) using Terms of Reference developed by the City.  

3. Amend Policy 5.39.1 - Chapter 5 – Development Process – Revised Evaluation Checklist 

(Attachment 1). (proposed new wording is underlined; deleted wording in strikethrough): 

Evaluation Checklist. Evaluate development applications that require an OCP 

amendment on the basis of the extent to which they comply with underlying OCP 

objectives, including the following: 

See Attachment #2 for proposed revised Checklist 

4. Add a new Guideline under section 17.0 Signs as Guideline 17.4 – Chapter 14 – Urban Design 

Development Permit Areas.  (proposed new wording is underlined; deleted wording in 

strikethrough): 

 

17.4 Where signage is proposed for buildings with historical character or heritage 

significance (i.e. listed on the Heritage Register, with Heritage Designation and/or 

located in a Heritage Conservation Areas or Bernard Avenue that has established 

historical significance) that signage should use design inspiration from historical 

influences (e.g. non-illuminated, non-animated & context sensitive). 

 

5. Add new Exemption on Page 14.22 under C. Intensive Residential – Carriage House / Two 

Dwelling Housing Design Guidelines: 

 

8



The addition of a second dwelling attached to a principal dwelling, provided construction of 

the new addition does not exceed 30 sq. m (323 sq. ft); or 

 

Add new Exemption on Page 14.30 under E. Intensive Residential – Hillside Design Guidelines: 

 

The addition of a second dwelling attached to a principal dwelling, provided construction of 

the new addition does not exceed 30 sq. m (323 sq. ft); or 

 

6. Amend Map 4.1 – Generalized Future Land Use to adjust Future Land Use (FLU) for 1991 Ethel 

St from Educational/Major Institutional to Major Park / Open Space (public) and adjust FLU for 

2035 Ethel St from Major Park / Open Space (public) to Educational/Major Institutional (Map 1). 

7. Amend Map 4.1 – Generalized Future Land Use to adjust Future Land Use (FLU) for 274 Avonlea 

Way from Single/Two Unit Residential to Major Park / Open Space (public) to reflect existing 

park (Map 2). 

 

8. Amend Map 4.1 – Generalized Future Land Use to adjust Future Land Use (FLU) for 3760 

Lakeshore Rd from Mixed Use Tourism to Major Park / Open Space (public) (Map 3). 

 

9. Amend Map 4.1 – Generalized Future Land Use to adjust Future Land Use (FLU) for plan 
EPP27701 (Map 4): 

- 5325 Lakeshore Rd from Resource Protection Area to Major Park / Open Space 
(public); 

- (W OF) South Perimeter Way St from Resource Protection Area and Single/Two Unit 
Residential to Major Park / Open Space (public); 

- (S OF) Tanager Dr and 266 Quilchena Dr from Major Park / Open Space (public) to 
Single/Two Unit Residential; 

- 5355, 5363, and 5405 Lakeshore Rd from Major Park / Open Space (public) to Resource 
Protection Area 

 

10. Amend Map 5.2 – Permanent Growth Boundary to adjust PGB for (W OF) South 

Perimeter Way (Map 5) 

 

11. Amend Map 4.1 – Generalized Future Land Use to adjust Future Land Use (FLU) for plan 
EPP33993 (Map 6): 

- (SW OF) Academy Way from Major Park / Open Space (public) to Resource Protection 
Area; 

- (S OF) Academy Way from Resource Protection Area to Major Park / Open Space 
(public); 

- portion of (S OF) Academy Way from Major Park / Open Space (public) to Single/Two 
Unit Residential – Hillside 

 
12. Amend Map 5.2 – Permanent Growth Boundary to adjust PGB for (S OF) Academy Way 

(Map 7) 

 

9



13. Amend Map 5.3 – Urban and Village Centres to adjust University South Village Centre for 

823 Academy Way (Map 8) 

 

14. Amend Map 5.4 – City Sectors to adjust sector for (S OF) Academy Way (Map 9) 

 
15. Amend Map 5.6 – Hazardous Condition DP Area Designation to adjust the boundaries of 

the Hazardous Conditions DP Area to remove sites that have been determined to not 

require a DP (Map 10)  

10



Attachment 1 (OCP14-0009) 

OCP Amendment Evaluation Checklist (OCP Objective 5.40; Policy .1) 

(New wording underlined; wording to be deleted is strikethrough) 

1. No amendments proposed for this criterion; 

Does the proposed development respect the OCP Permanent Growth Boundary (OCP 

Map 4.1 and 5.2)? 

2. No amendments proposed for this criterion; 

Is the proposed development located in an Urban Centre? 

3. Amend to be more succinct;  

Does the proposed development feature a mix of residential, employment, 

institutional, and/or recreational uses within individual buildings or larger 

development projects? 

4. Amend to include where to find definition of “affordable” housing; 

Does the proposed development increase the supply of “affordable” housing? (As 

defined in the OCP Chapter 17 - Definitions) apartments or townhouses? 

5. No amendments proposed for this criterion; 

Is the property serviced with water and City sewer at the time of application? 

6. Amend to read easier; 

Is there transit service within 400 metres of non-residential projects or major 

employment generators (50+ employees)? 

Is there transit service within 400 metres of major multiple unit residential projects 

(30 + units) or other non-residential projects or major employment generators (50 + 

employees)? 

7. No amendments proposed for this criterion; 

Does the proposed project involve redevelopment of currently under-utilized, 

urbanized land? 

8. No amendments proposed for this criterion; 

Does the proposed development contribute to preserving lands with slopes greater 

than 30%? 

11



9. Amend to be less subjective; 

If the project goes ahead, would surrounding property owners be likely to develop 

their properties as per OCP Future Land Use and other City policy provisions? 

Will the project likely facilitate future development on adjacent parcels that meets 

the policies of the OCP? 

10. Amend to be more succinct; 

Does the project avoid negative impacts (shadowing, traffic etc.) on adjoining 

properties where those adjoining properties are not slated for land use changes? 

11. No amendments proposed for this criterion; 

Is the project consistent with the height principles established in the OCP? 

12. Amend to be less subjective; 

Would the additional density or new land use designation enhance the surrounding 

neighbourhood (i.e. Complete communities) or introduce incompatible uses? in a way 

that the current land use designation does not?  

13. Amend to remove reference to community resources; 

Could the project be supported without over-burdening existing park and other 

community resources or threatening the viability of existing neighbourhood resources? 

14. Amend to reflect minimal cost; 

Could the proposed project be built at minimal (<$) no financial cost to the City?  (This 

should consider operational and maintenance costs.) 

15. Propose deleting;  

Would the proposed project help decrease the rate of travel by private automobile, 

especially during peak hours? 

16. Propose deleting;  

Does the proposed project result in the creation of substantially more public open 

space than would be available if the development were not to proceed (not including 

required open space dedications or non-developable areas)?   

17. Propose deleting;  

Is there a deficiency of properties within the applicable Sector (See Map 5.4) that 

already have the OCP designation being sought? 

12



ET
HE

L S
T

SPRINGFIELD RDCADDER AVE

SUTHERLAND AVE

BO
WE

S S
T

BURNE AVE

CA
RR

UT
HE

RS
 ST

839

1986

9702055

2035

1999

1050

920-980
2090

1991

2008

907

2020

889

1966

2121

925

2002

1965

883

1965

1988

886

862

1927

995

1966

862 878870

1955

1921

1951

869

845

859

1960

857

1905

1980
1975

1985

879

1965

1945

1955

1935

1995

1925

1915

1944
1934
1926
1916

1950

2054

19561956
19461946

2094

1945
1936

1926

1916

1935

19251926
1915

1936

1916

1906 1905

2030-2032

882-884

1939-1941

854

1968

1976

1994

1891

2064-2066
2074-2076

1994

1976

1968

1891

2110-2112

992-994

854

189218931890

846

Proposed OCP Map 4.1 Future Land Use Amendments
April 2014
Bylaw 10943 - Map # 1

Existing

ET
HE

L S
T

SPRINGFIELD RDCADDER AVE

SUTHERLAND AVE

BO
WE

S S
T

BURNE AVE

CA
RR

UT
HE

RS
 ST

839

1986

9702055

2035

1999

1050

920-980
2090

1991

2008

907

2020

889

1966

2121

925

2002

1965

883

1965

1988

886

862

1927

995

1966

862 878870

1955

1921

1951

869

845

859

1960

857

1905

1980
1975

1985

879

1965

1945

1955

1935

1995

1925

1915

1944
1934
1926
1916

1950

2054

19561956
19461946

2094

1945
1936

1926

1916

1935

19251926
1915

1936

1916

1906 1905

2030-2032

882-884

1939-1941

854

1968

1976

1994

1891

2064-2066
2074-2076

1994

1976

1968

1891

2110-2112

992-994

854

18921893

851

1890

846

Proposed¯

Legend
Property Lotlines
Subject Property

Future Land Use Code
Educational/Major Institutional
Multiple Unit Residential (Medium Density)
Multiple Unit Residential (Low Density)
Major Park/Open Space (public)
Single / Two Unit Residential

Subject Property Note:

Policy_Planning\1200 COMMUNITY PLANNING\1200-31\Maps\OCP_Bylaw\Map4_1_FutureLanduse
\Amendments\OCP14_0009\2014-03-19_OCP14-0009_Map1_GM.mxd

Amend OCP Map 4.1 for a portion of the
property from Educational/Major
Institutional (EDINST) to Major Park 
/Open Space (PARK)

Subject Property Note:
Amend OCP Map 4.1 for a portion of the
property from Major Park/Open Space 
(PARK) to Educational/Major
Institutional (EDINST) 

13



AV
ON

LE
A W

AY

MAGIC DR

CAM
EL

OT
CT

KN
IG

HT
SB

RI
DG

E W
AYLAMBETH CT

PENDRAGON PL

500

256

274

900-920

274

258

263

1086

260

280

252

288

290 290

268

248

261

(W OF)

255

254

242

268

1090

257

270

250

292

1095

262

259

260

250

273

281

1094

253
248

264

288

252

244

269

289

271

264

243

262

246

291
293

251

296

238

234

292

240

285

281

283

279

277

275

246

287

1091

1098

260

308

243

241

1099

292

239

245

304

254

293

259

288

265

263

235

247

300

294

232

258

295

Proposed OCP Map 4.1 Future Land Use Amendments
April 2014
Bylaw 10943 - Map # 2

Existing

AV
ON

LE
A W

AY

MAGIC DR

CAMELOT CT

500

256

274

900-920

274

258

263

1086

260

280

252

288

290 290

268

248

261

(W OF)

255

254

242

268

1090

257

270

250

292

1095

262

259

260

250

273

281

1094

253
248

264

288

252

244

269

289

271

264

243

262

246

291
293

251

296

238

234

292

240

285

281

283

279

277

275

246

287

1091

1098

260

308

243

241

1099

292

239

245

304

254

293

259

288

265

263

235

247

300

294

232

258

295

Proposed¯

Legend
Property Lotlines
Subject Property

Future Land Use Code
Major Park/Open Space (public)
Single / Two Unit Residential

Subject Property Note:

Policy_Planning\1200 COMMUNITY PLANNING\1200-31\Maps\OCP_Bylaw\Map4_1_FutureLanduse
\Amendments\OCP14_0009\2014-03-19_OCP14-0009_Map2_GM.mxd

Amend OCP Map 4.1 for the subject
property from Single/Two Unit
Residential (S2RES) to Major Park 
/Open Space (PARK)

14



ST
EL

LA
R D

R

LA
KESHORE RD

UPLANDS DR

RA
VE

N
DR

TANAGER DR

SANDPIPER ST

SA
ND

PIP
ER

 C
T

TANAGER CT

GROUSE AVE

THRASHER AVE

5225

(W OF)

5445

5325

5205

(W OF)

5405

5485

5415

5581

5307

335

5355

351

(S OF)

5299

5332

330

266

5363 5397

340
362

318

322

5320

5356

349

333

5308

329
322

314

363359 365361

325

309

306

5398

357

326

355

317

292

337

5409

345 349

313

341

321

371

3105385

358

305

301

311

303

330

334

276

5292

344

314

301

302

291

307

345

287

305

373

288

5421

315

282

348

328

296

321

295

5386

5392

317

304

289

5701

300
299

330326322

334

320

351

301

367

294

323

307

343

347

339

298

306

325

355

336

314

312

5737

335

300

370

318

308

335

315

303

5725

325

312

295

338

311

362

346

297

354327

331

360

5404

5416

318

369

5705

5733

5427

5721

5709

5296

5717

364

5428

375

5321

319

307

5422

5713

5284

5280

5288

5420

378

318

5410

5320

5276 5272

313

311

5268

362

5514

324

5741

343

5252

5512

5260

332

368

330

339

5510

377

330 339

359

(W OF)

Proposed OCP Map 4.1 Future Land Use Amendments
April 2014
Bylaw 10943 - Map # 3

Existing

ST
EL

LA
R 

DR

LA
KE

SH
OR

ER
D

UPLANDS DR

RA
VE

N 
DR

TANAGER DR

SANDPIPER ST

SA
ND

PIP
ER

 C
T

TANAGER CT

GROUSE AVE

THRASHER AVE

5225

(W OF)

5445

5325

5205

(W OF)

5405

5485

5415

5581

5307

335

5355

351

(S OF)

5299

5332

330

266

5363 5397

340
362

318

322

5320

5356

349

333

5308

329
322

314

363359 365361

325

309

306

5398

357

326

355

317

292

337

5409

345 349

313

341

321

371

3105385

358

305

301

311

303

330

334

276

5292

344

314

301

302

291

307

345

287

305

373

288

5421

315

282

348

328

296

321

295

5386

5392

317

304

289

5701

300
299

330326322

334

320

351

301

367

294

323

307

343

347

339

298

306

325

336

355

314

312

5737

335

300

370

318

308

335

315

303

5725

325

312

295

338

311

362

346

297

354327

331

5404

360

5416

369

318

5705

5733

5427

5721

5709

5296

5717

364

5428

5321

375

319

307

5422

5713

5284

5280

5288

5420

378

318

5410

5320

5276 5272

313

311

5268

362

5514

324

5741

343

5252

5512

5260

332

368

330

339

5510

377

330 339

359

(W OF)

Proposed¯

Legend
Property Lotlines
Subject Property

Future Land Use Code
Major Park/Open Space (public)
Resource Protection Area
Single / Two Unit Residential
Single / Two Unit Residential - Hillside

Subject Property Note:

Policy_Planning\1200 COMMUNITY PLANNING\1200-31\Maps\OCP_Bylaw\Map4_1_FutureLanduse
\Amendments\OCP14_0009\2014-03-19_OCP14-0009_Map3_GM.mxd

Amend OCP Map 4.1 for a portion of the
properties from Major Park/Open Space
(PARK) to Resource Protection Area
(REP) 

Subject Property Note:
Amend OCP Map 4.1 for a portion of the
properties from Major Park 
/Open Space (PARK) to Single / Two
Unit Residential (R2RES)

Subject Property Note:
Amend OCP Map 4.1 for a portion of the
properties from Resource Protection
Area (REP) to Major Park
/Open Space (PARK)

15



ST
EL

LA
R

DR

RA
VE

N
DR

TANAGER DR

SA
ND

PIP
ER

 C
T

SA
NDPIPER ST

TANAGER CT

GROUSE AVE

PHOEBE CT

LEE LA
NE

THRASHER AVE

(W OF)

5225

(W OF) 5581

(S OF)

322

266

5205

5397

330

318

322

333
329

314

325

309

306

5398

326

317

292

337

5409

345 349

313

341

321

3105385

305

301

311

303

330

276

344

319

314

301

302

291

307

287

305

360

288

5421

315

282

348

301

328

296
307

321

295

5386

5392

318

304

289

300
299

330326322

334

320

313

294

323

307

298

368

306

325

336

314

312

324

300

318

308

335

315

303

325

312

295

338

311

346

297

5404

327

5416

354

330

369

5427

5428

5321

5422

5420

5410

5320

325

5512

331

5514

5510

362

336

5511

5508

371

376335

331

5506

370

(W OF)

Proposed OCP PGB Amendments
April 2014
Bylaw 10943 - Map # 4

Existing

ST
EL

LA
R 

DR

RA
VE

N 
DR

TANAGER DR

SA
ND

PIP
ER

 C
T

SA
ND

PIP
ER

ST

TANAGER CT

GROUSE AVE

THRASHER AVE

(W OF)

5225

(W OF) 5581

(S OF)

322

266

5205

5397

330

318

322

333
329

314

325

309

306

5398

326

317

292

337

5409

345 349

313

341

321

3105385

305

301

311

303

330

276

344

319

314

301

302

291

307

287

305

360

288

5421

315

282

348

301

328

296
307

321

295

5386

5392

318

304

289

300
299

330326322

334

320

313

294

323

307

298

368

306

325

336

314

312

324

300

318

308

335

315

303

325

312

295

338

311

346

297

5404

327

5416

354

330

369

5427

5428

5321

5422

5420

5410

5320

325

5512

331

5514

5510

362

336

5511

5508

371

376335

331

5506

5509

370

(W OF)

Proposed¯

Legend
Property Lotlines
Subject Property
Permanent Growth Boundary

Subject Property Note:

Policy_Planning\1200 COMMUNITY PLANNING\1200-31\Maps\OCP_Bylaw\Map5_2_Permanent_Growth
\Amendments\OCP14_0009\2014-03-19_OCP14-0009_Map4_GM.mxd

Adjust Permanent Growth Boundary
for a portion of properties on OCP
Map 5.2 Permanent Growth Boundary

16



LA
KE

SH
OR

E R
D

3766

3762

3756

3726

648-654

3787-3795

(W OF) 3763

3753

3745

3745

3760

3745

Proposed OCP Map 4.1 Future Land Use Amendments
April 2014
Bylaw 10943 - Map # 5

Existing

LA
KE

SH
OR

E R
D

3766

3762

3756

3726

648-654

3787-3795

(W OF) 3763

3753

3745

3745

3760

3745
Proposed¯

Legend
Property Lotlines
Subject Property

Future Land Use Code
Multiple Unit Residential (Low Density)
Mixed Use Tourism
Major Park/Open Space (public)

Subject Property Note:

Policy_Planning\1200 COMMUNITY PLANNING\1200-31\Maps\OCP_Bylaw\Map4_1_FutureLanduse
\Amendments\OCP14_0009\2014-03-19_OCP14-0009_Map5_GM.mxd

Amend OCP Map 4.1 for a portion of the
property from Mixed Use Tourism (MXT)
to Major Park/Open Space (PARK)

17



MUSTANG CT

AC
AD

EM
Y 

W
AY

CLYDESDALE RD

(S OF)

823

(S OF)

400

2730

459

(SW OF)

799

759

2744

841

359

879 899
899

2740

2750

890-950

721

709

3142

376

371 3147
369

374 367

3146
3150

365
3155

929

372

3151

370

699

3159

3154

363

Proposed OCP Map 4.1 Future Land Use Amendments
April 2014
Bylaw 10943 - Map # 6

Existing AC
AD

EM
Y 

W
AY

CLYDESDALE RD

(S OF)

823

(S OF)

400

2730

459

(SW OF)

799

759

2744

841

359

879 899
899

2740

2750

890-950

721

709

3142

376

371 3147
369

374 367

3146
3150

365
3155

929

372

3151

370

699

3159

3154

363

Proposed¯

Legend
Property Lotlines
Subject Property

Future Land Use Code
Commercial
Educational/Major Institutional
Multiple Unit Residential (Medium Density)
Multiple Unit Residential (Low Density)
Major Park/Open Space (public)
Resource Protection Area
Single / Two Unit Residential
Single / Two Unit Residential - Hillside

Subject Property Note:

Policy_Planning\1200 COMMUNITY PLANNING\1200-31\Maps\OCP_Bylaw\Map4_1_FutureLanduse
\Amendments\OCP14_0009\2014-03-19_OCP14-0009_Map6_GM.mxd

Amend OCP Map 4.1 for a portion of the
properties from Resource Protection Area
(REP) to Major Park/Open Space (PARK)

Subject Property Note:
Amend OCP Map 4.1 for a portion of the
properties from Major Park/Open Space
(PARK) to Single / Two Unit Residentia
- Hillside (S2RESH)

Subject Property Note:
Amend OCP Map 4.1 for a portion of the
properties from Educational/Major
Institutional (EDINST) to Major Park
/Open Space (PARK)

Subject Property Note:
Amend OCP Map 4.1 for a portion of the
properties from Major Park/Open Space
(PARK)  to Resource Protection Area (REP) 

18



ARAB RD
REYN RD

CLYDESDALE RD

MUSTANG CT

RE
YN

OL
DS

RD

(S OF)

(S OF)

400

823

2730

359

2744

459

759

(SW OF)

2740

799

2750

721

709

699

2780
309

841

302

376

2748

370

304

303

289

3010

374

3006

312

300

314

298

338

313

371

683

310

372

308

369

306

339

322316

337

328 334324 330

321

320 336332326

327 331315 329 333 335

318

319 323317 325 341

3022 3054 3078 311031023030 30863046 3118309430703038 3062 3126

367

3134

3142

3147

365

Proposed OCP PGB Amendments
April 2014
Bylaw 10943 - Map # 7

Existing

ARAB RD
REYN RD

CLYDESDALE RD

(S OF)

(S OF)

400

823

2730

359

2744

459

759

(SW OF)

2740

799

2750

721

709

699

2780
309

841

302

376

2748

370

304

303

289

3010

374

3006

312

300

314

298

338

313

371

683

310

372

308

369

306

339

322316

337

328 334324 330

321

320 336332326

327 331315 329 333 335

318

319 323317 325 341

3022 3054 3078 311031023030 30863046 3118309430703038 3062 3126

367

3134

3142

3147

3142

365

Proposed¯

Legend
Property Lotlines
Subject Property
Permanent Growth Boundary

Subject Property Note:

Policy_Planning\1200 COMMUNITY PLANNING\1200-31\Maps\OCP_Bylaw\Map5_2_Permanent_Growth
\Amendments\OCP14_0009\2014-03-19_OCP14-0009_Map7_GM.mxd

Adjust Permanent Growth Boundary
for a portion of properties on OCP
Map 5.2 Permanent Growth Boundary

19



AC
AD

EM
Y WAY

2

(S OF)

823

899

890-950

(S OF)

959

989

929

935

899

995
975-985

1019

(SW OF)

879

1039

Proposed OCP Map 5.3 Village Centre Amendments
April 2014
Bylaw 10943 - Map # 8

Existing

AC
AD

EM
Y WAY

(S OF)

823

899

890-950

(S OF)

959

989

929

935

899

995
975-985

1019

(SW OF)

879

1039

Proposed¯

Legend
Property Lotlines
Subject Property
Village Centres

Subject Property Note:

Policy_Planning\1200 COMMUNITY PLANNING\1200-31\Maps\OCP_Bylaw\Map5_3_UrbanVillage_Centres
\Amendments\OCP14_0009\2014-03-19_OCP14-0009_Map8_GM.mxd

Adjust Village Centre Boundary
for a portion of properties on OCP
Map 5.3 Urban and Village Centres

20



VALLEY RD N

CU
RTIS RD

CU
RT

IS
RD

840

(S OF)

950

899

760

2730

929

759

879

799

1595

959

841

1595

956

705

989

720

2740

(SW OF)

(S OF)

995

699

855

709

721

683
667

607

631

649

587

1019

785

890-950

567

600
656

1039

Proposed OCP Map 5.4 City Sector Amendments
April 2014
Bylaw 10943 - Map # 9

Existing

CU
RT

IS 
RD

CU
RT

IS 
RD

840

(S OF)

950

899

760

2730

929

759

879

799

1595

959

841

1595

956

705

989

720

2740

(SW OF)

(S OF)

995

699

855

709

721

683
667

607

631

649

587

1019

785

890-950

567

600
656

VALLEY RD N

1039

Proposed¯

Legend
Property Lotlines
Subject Property
Glenmore - Clifton - Dilworth
Highway 97
McKinley

Subject Property Note:

Policy_Planning\1200 COMMUNITY PLANNING\1200-31\Maps\OCP_Bylaw\Map5_4_City_Sectors
\Amendments\OCP14_0009\2014-03-19_OCP14-0009_Map9_GM.mxd

Adjust Sector Boundary
for a portion of properties on OCP
Map 5.4 City Sector

21



Okanagan Lake

Okanagan Lake

Okanagan Lake

DALLAS RD

AB
B O

TT
ST

M O
R R

IS
ON

RD

HOBSON

RD

SAUCIERRD

HIGH RD

CADDER
AVE

CARAMILLO

RD

HO
L L

Y W
O O

D
RD

SZIP
RI

CK
 R

D

G E
R S

T M
A R

RD

BACH RD

RA
Y M

ER
RD

GALLAGH
ER

RD

W
ESTRIDGE DR

SEXSMITH RD

CROSSRD

ST
E W

A R
T

R D
E

RIODR
S

BL
A C

K
MO

UN
TA

IN
DR

CR
AW

FO
RD

RD

MUGFORD
RD

SA
LL

OW
S R

D

ET
HE

L S
T

CL
IFT

ON
RD

N
CL

IFT
ON

RD

OSWELL DR

EL
L I S

ST

LEATHEAD RD

SU

MMIT DR

RI
CH

TE
R

ST

UN
IO

N 
RD

WA
TE

R 
ST

BERNARD
AVE

RIO
DR

HARTMAN RD

MC
KIN

LE
Y RD

VA
LL

EY
 RD

R I
CH

TE
R

ST

RU
TL

A N
D

RD
S

TRENCH PL

HOLLYWO OD
RD

S
PA

ND
O S

Y
ST

MO
LN

AR
RD

RAYMERAVE

KLO RD

VALLEY
RD N

CH UTE
LAKE

RD

BU
RT

C H
RD

MCCURDY RD

HARVEY
AVE

CLEMENTAVE

OLD
VERNON RD

MCCULLOCH RD

SARSONS RD

BROADWAYAVE

CHUTE
LA

KE RD

PO
PLAR

PO
INT DR

GUISACHANRD

FITZPATRICK
RD

WALLACE RD

HIGH RD

MOYER RD

HAL LRD

LAKESHORE RD

HO
LL

YW
OO

D
RD

 N

SP
A L

L R
D

HWY 33 W

BU
RT

CH
RD

UPLA
NDS

DR

CASORSO RD

KANE RD
OLD

VERNON RD

POOLEY RD

SPRINGFIELD RD

GA
RN

ER RD

SP
IER

S 
RD

BEN
VO

ULIN
 RD

MCCURDY
RD E

RU
T L

AN
D

RD
N

HWY
97 N

DEHART RD
UP

PE
R

CA
NY

ON
 DR

M C
CU

L L
OC

H
RD

GL
EN

M O
RE

D R

AIRPORT W
AY

QU
AI

L
RID

GE
BL

VD

LONGHILL

RD

TRENCH

PL

BEAVER
LAKE RD

BARNABY RD

BE
NN

ET
T

RD

MC
KE

NZ
IE

RD

TEASDALE
RD

GI
B S

ON
RD

ST
EW

AR
T R

D 
W

DILWORTH DR

COOPER RD

BEDFORD
RD

OKAVIEW RD

FIE
L D

R D

GULLEYRD

FINNS RD

WEDDELLPL

SW
IC

K 
RD

UP
PE

R CA
NY

ON DR N

SW
AM

P R
D

RI
F L

ER
D

SCENIC RD

HWY 33 E

GRANTHAMRD

GO
RD

O N
DR

GL
EN

MO
RE

RD

SUNSET DR

MATHEWS RD

HO
LL

YW
OO

D
RD

 N

BE
LG

O
RD

JUNE

SPRINGS RD

LEXINGTON
DR

GL
EN

MO
RE

RD
N

MC
KE

NZ
IE

RD

W
AL

LA
CE

HI
LL

RD

MILLERRD

RE
ID

 R
D

RO
SE

 R
D

GULLEYRD

CHUTE
LAKE RD

HART
RD

CORNISH RD

HART
RD

BYRNS RD

EAST KELOWNA RD

BU
LM

AN
RD

¯

Proposed OCP Map 5.6 
Hazardous Condition DP Amendment

Bylaw 10943 - Map # 10

This map is for general information only.
The City of Kelowna does not guarantee its
accuracy. All information should be verified.

April 20140 1,500 3,000750 Metres
Amend OCP Map 5.6 to remove unnecessary
Hazardous Condition DP areas

Subject Properties Notes:

Policy_Planning\1200 COMMUNITY PLANNING\1200-31\Maps\OCP_Bylaw\Map5_6_Hazardous_Condition\Amendments\OCP14_0009\2014-03-19_OCP14-0009_Map10_GM.mxd

Legend
Highways
Major Roads
Lakes
City Boundary
Hazardous Condition DP

22



REPORT TO COUNCIL 
 
 
 

Date: 4/14/2014 

RIM No. 1250-30 

To: City Manager 

From: Subdivision, Agriculture & Environment Services (MS) 

Application: Z14-0005 Owners: Heritage Log Structures Inc. 

Address: 669 McClure Road Applicant: Jennie Coukell 

Subject: Rezoning a lot from RU1 to RU2 to facilitate a 2 lot subdivision  

Existing OCP Designation: S2RES – Single/Two Unit Residential 

Existing Zone: RU1- Large Lot Housing 

Proposed Zone: RU2 – Medium Lot Housing 

 

1.0 Recommendation 

THAT Rezoning Application No. Z14-0005 to amend the City of Kelowna Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 by 
changing the zoning classification of Lot 2, District Lot 357, ODYD, Plan 24825, located on 669 
McClure Road, Kelowna, BC from the RU1 zone to the RU2 zone be considered by Council; 
 
AND THAT the Zone Amending Bylaw be forwarded to a Public Hearing for further consideration; 
 
AND THAT final adoption of the Zone Amending Bylaw be considered subsequent to the issuance 
of a Preliminary Layout Review Letter by the Approving Officer; 
 
AND THAT final adoption of the Zone Amending Bylaw be considered subsequent to the 
requirements of the Development Engineering Branch being completed to their satisfaction. 
 

2.0 Purpose 

The applicant is requesting permission to rezone the subject property from RU1 – Large Lot 
Housing to RU2 – Medium Lot Housing in order to facilitate a subdivision of the parcel into two 
equal lots.  

3.0 Subdivision, Agriculture and Environment Services 

The subject property is within the Okanagan Mission Sector of Kelowna. It is designated as S2RES 
– Single/Two Unit Residential in the OCP and as such the application to rezone to RU2 to 
facilitate a 2 lot subdivision is in compliance with the designated future land use.  In addition, 

23



Z14-0005 – Page 2 

 
 

the OCP generally supports the densification of neighbourhoods through appropriate infill 
development, including the use of smaller lots. 

The proposed lots meet or exceed the zoning criteria standards for the RU2 – Medium Lot 
Housing zone. The property is serviced by City of Kelowna water and sanitary sewer.  McClure 
Road is currently on the Southridge Bus Transit Route. 

Based on current City policy and the services available, City staff supports this application.  

4.0 Proposal 

4.1 Background / Project Description 

The applicant is requesting permission to subdivide the existing 1173 m2 (0.29 ac) parcel into 
two equal parcels. 

4.2 Site Context 

The subject property is located in the Okanagan Mission Sector of Kelowna (see Map 1 - Subject 
Property, below). Elevations range from 372.7 metres above sea level (masl) at the northwest 
corner to 374.2 masl at the southeast corner of the property. The property currently has a single 
family dwelling on the property.  In order to create the subdivision, the house will need to be 
demolished. 
 
The surrounding area is characterized by single family dwellings. 

 
Parcel Summary: 

 Parcel Size: 1173 m2 (0.29 ac) 
 Elevation: 372.7 masl to 374.2 masl 
 Gradient: approximately 3% sloping down towards the northwest 

4.3 Zoning of Adjacent Property 

Zoning for adjacent properties is outlined in the following table: 

 

Table 1:  Zoning of Adjacent Property 

Direction Zoning Designation Land Use 

North RU-1 Large Lot Housing Single Family Dwelling 

East RU-1 Large Lot Housing Single Family Dwelling 

South RU-1 Large Lot Housing Single Family Dwelling 

West RU-1 Large Lot Housing Single Family Dwelling 

 

  

24



Z14-0005 – Page 3 

 
 

Map 1: Subject Property – 669 McClure Road 

 

 

Map 2: Neighbourhood Future Land Use – 669 McClure Road 

 

 
  

Subject 

Property 

Future Land Use – S2RES – 

Single/Two Unit 

Residential 

Subject 

Property 

McClure Road 

McClure Road 

25



Z14-0005 – Page 4 

 
 

 

4.4 Transit 

McClure Road is currently serviced by the #17 – Southridge Bus Transit Route. 

4.5 Servicing 

The area is currently serviced by City of Kelowna water and sanitary sewer. 

4.6 Subdivision and Development Criteria 

The proposed lot configuration conforms to the requirements of the RU2 – Medium Lot Housing 
zone requirements. Subdivision and development criteria for the RU2 zone are shown in the 
Table 1 below. 
 
Table 2:  RU2 Zoning Criteria 

CRITERIA RU2 – MEDIUM LOT HOUSING - ZONE REQUIREMENTS 

Subdivision Regulations 

Minimum Lot Area 400 m2 

Minimum Lot Width 13.0 m 

Minimum Lot Depth 30.0 m 

Minimum Front Yard 4.5 m (6.0 m from a garage or carport) 

Minimum Side Yard 

1.5 m (for up to 1 ½ storey portion of building) 

1.8 m (for up to 2 ½ storey portion of building) 

3.0 m (if there is no garage or carport from the front) 

Minimum Rear Yard 
6.0 m (for up to 1 ½ storey portion of building) 

 7.5 m (for up to 2 ½ storey portion of building) 

Maximum Site Coverage 40% (50% including driveways and parking areas) 

 
No variances are required for this subdivision at this time. 
 
1.0 THE PROPOSAL 

 
The application proposes to subdivide the 1173 m2 (0.29 ac) parcel into two approximately equal 
parcels.  The proposed property line would run north/south through the property, leaving road 
frontage for each parcel along McClure Road (see below and attached).  
 
Should the rezoning application be successful, the applicant are planning to subdivide and build 
two new homes, similar in style and character as other new homes in the area. 
 
  

26



Z14-0005 – Page 5 

 
 

Map 3: Proposed Subdivision Layout 

 

6.0 Current Development Policies  

Current development policies that relate to the application are included in the section below. 

6.1 Kelowna 2020 – Official Community Plan - General Policies1 

Focus development to designated growth areas  

Compact Urban Form. Develop a compact urban form that maximizes the use of existing 
infrastructure and contributes to energy efficient settlement patterns. This will be done by 
increasing densities (approximately 75 - 100 people and/or jobs per ha located within a 400 
metre walking distance of transit stops is required to support the level of transit service) 
through development, conversion, and re-development within Urban Centres in particular and 
existing areas as per the provisions of the Generalized Future Land Use Map. 

                                                
1 City of Kelowna Official Community Plan – Development Process; p. 5.3 

27



Z14-0005 – Page 6 

 
 

Permanent Growth Boundary.2 Establish a Permanent Growth Boundary as identified on Map 4.1 
and Map 5.2. The City of Kelowna will support development of property outside the Permanent 
Growth Boundary for more intensive use only to the extent permitted as per the OCP Future Land 
Use designations in place as of initial adoption of OCP Bylaw 10500, except for Agri-Business 
designated sites or as per Council’s specific amendment of this policy. The Permanent Growth 
Boundary may be reviewed as part of the next major OCP update. 

Ensure context sensitive housing development3 

Sensitive Infill.  Encourage new development or redevelopment in existing residential areas to 
be sensitive to or reflect the character of the neighborhood with respect to building design, 
height and siting. 

Healthy Communities. Through current zoning regulations and development processes, foster 
healthy, inclusive communities and a diverse mix of housing forms, consistent with the 
appearance of the surrounding neighbourhood. 

7.0 Technical Comments 

7.1 Development Services Department 

Development Engineering Branch has provided comments for the application, summarized 
below (memo attached). 

a) Road frontage improvements, including curb and gutter, storm drainage, pavement 
widening, landscaped boulevard, street lighting, and the relocation or adjustment 
of utility appurtenances if required to accommodate the upgrading construction, 
will be required. 

7.2 Policy and Planning Department 

Policy and Planning notes that the property is designated as S2RES – Single/Two Unit 
Residential in the OCP and as such the application to rezone to RU2 to facilitate a 2 lot 
subdivision is in compliance and should be supported.  The OCP generally supports the 
densification of neighbourhoods through appropriate infill development, including the use 
of smaller lots. 

7.3 Shaw Cable 

Shaw Cable approves the proposed rezoning application from RU1 to RU2 to accommodate 
a 2 lot single family subdivision.  Owner / developer is to supply and install an 
underground conduit system per Shaw Cable drawings and specifications. 

7.4 FortisBC 

There are primary distribution facilities along McClure Road.  The applicant is responsible 
for costs associated with any change to the proposed lots’ existing service, if any, as well 
as the provision of appropriate land rights where required.  Otherwise, FortisBC (Electric) 
has no concerns with this circulation. 

 

                                                
2 City of Kelowna Official Community Plan, Policy 5.3.1 (Development Process Chapter). 
3 City of Kelowna Official Community Plan – Development Process; p. 5.27 

28



Z14-0005 – Page 7 

 
 

8.0 Application Chronology  

Date of Application Received: February 14, 2014 
 
Agency Comments Received:  March 17, 2013 

 

 

 

Report prepared by: 

     
Melanie Steppuhn, Land Use Planner  
 
 

Reviewed by:    Todd Cashin, Manager, Environment & Land Use 
 

Approved for Inclusion:  Shelley Gambacort, Director, Land Use Management 
 

 

 

Attachments: 

Subject Property Map 
Site Plan – Proposed Subdivision Layout 
Development Engineering Memorandum 

29



Application

Z14-0005

Subject Property

Map: 954 x 542 m -- Scale 1:5,634 2014-04-06

Certain layers such as lots, zoning and dp areas are updated bi-weekly. This map is for general information only.
The City of Kelowna does not guarantee its accuracy. All information should be verified.

Page 1 of 1Map Output

4/6/2014http://kelintranetd/servlet/com.esri.esrimap.Esrimap?ServiceName=Overview_Map&Client...

30



31



32



REPORT TO COUNCIL 
 
 
 

Date: 4/28/2014 

RIM No. 1250-30 

To: City Manager 

From: Subdivision, Agriculture & Environment Services (MS) 

Application: OCP13-0003 & Z13-0004 Owner:  DRS Ventures Ltd, 

Address: 1800 Crosby Road Applicant: DE Pilling and Associates 

Subject: OCP Amendment and Rezoning Application   

Existing OCP Designation: 
Single/Two Unit Residential 
Multiple Unit Residential (Low Density) 

 
Major Park/Open Space 
 

Proposed OCP 
Designation: 

Single/Two Unit Residential 
Multiple Unit Residential (Low Density) 
Major Park/Open Space 

Existing Zone: A1 – Agriculture 1 

Proposed Zone: P3 – Parks and Open Space 
RU2 – Medium Lot Housing 

 

1.0 Recommendation 

THAT OCP Bylaw Amendment No. OCP13-0003 to amend Map 4.1 of the Kelowna 2020 - Official 
Community Plan Bylaw No. 7600 by changing the Future Land Use designation of a part of the 
South East ¼ of Section 5 TWP 23 ODYD Except Plan 896, located at 1800 Crosby Road, Kelowna, 
B.C., from the current Single/Two Unit Residential - Hillside and Park - Major Park/Open Space 
designation to the proposed Single/Two Unit Residential and Park - Major Park/Open Space 
configuration, as shown on “Map A” attached to the report, dated September 2013, be 
considered by Council; 
 
AND THAT Council considers the public consultation process to be appropriate for the purpose of 
Section 879 of the Local Government Act, as outlined in the Report of the Subdivision, 
Agriculture & Environment Services Branch dated April 28, 2014; 
  
AND THAT Rezoning Application No. Z13-0004 to amend the City of Kelowna Zoning Bylaw No. 
8000 by changing the zoning classification of a part of the South East ¼ of Section 5 Township 23 
ODYD Except Plan 896, located at 1800 Crosby Road, Kelowna, B.C., from A1 - Agriculture 1 to 
the P3 – Parks and Open Space and RU2 – Medium Lot Housing as shown on “Map B” attached to 
the report, dated September 2013, be considered by Council. 
 

33



OCP13-0003 & Z13-0004– Page 2 

 
 

AND THAT final adoption of the zone amending bylaw be considered after the issuance of a 
Natural Environment Development Permit; 
 
AND FURTHER THAT final adoption of the zone amending bylaw be considered subsequent to the 
requirements of the Development Engineering Branch, Infrastructure Planning Branch, Real 
Estate Branch and Glenmore Ellison Improvement District being completed to their satisfaction. 

2.0 Purpose  

The applicant is proposing to amend the future land use and zoning to accommodate a 12 lot 
development on a portion of the subject property in the Glenmore area.   

3.0 Subdivision, Agriculture & Environment Services Comments 

The Glenmore Highlands Area Structure Plan (ASP) encompasses the subject property and 
provides the framework for land use on the subject property (Ekistics, 2000). The original ASP for 
the parent parcel identified different land uses for the property including park, single family 
residential, and multi-family residential – low density.  The location of the proposed 
development is perched above existing development located on the valley floor and this site 
would be highly visible along a well established urban single family vs. open space boundary. 
 
The current future land use map for this portion of the property assigns Major Park /Open Space 
land use. The proposed development site would gain access from Crosby Road.  The OCP 
amendment would change approximately 5.6 ha from Single / Two Family Residential into Major 
Park / Open Space, and be dedicated to the City of Kelowna.  
 
Staff acknowledge the landowners expectation that portions of the parent parcel would be 
developed as identified in the Area Structure Plan and Official Community Plan. Staff recognize 
the proposed development area is the most suitable location for residential development from a 
development perspective, taking into consideration the ease of access, existing services, and the 
comparatively low environmental sensitivity rating.  However, this area is also the most suitable 
for an easily accessible park and staging area.   
 
Support for policy amendments is generally considered in terms of the net impact of the 
development and consistency with other relevant policies.  Accordingly, the proposed 
development must represent a clear benefit to the City and its residents and must be justifiable.  
The proposal results in a net gain of approximately 3.6 ha of land that had a future land use 
designation for Single / Two Family Residential changed to Major Park / Open Space, with the 
proposed 14.27 ha Park / Open Space area to be dedicated to the City of Kelowna.  The 
environmental rating of the new proposed park area is primarily High Environmentally Sensitive 
Area (ESA), with some Moderate ESA, according to the Environmental Assessment Report1.  The 
new proposed Single / Two Family Residential area of 1.99 ha is rated as primarily low ESA. 
 
In sum, Staff acknowledges that the net gain to Major Park / Open Space of approximately 3.6 
ha, together with the blanket Statutory Right of Way and No Build No Disturb Covenant on the 
parent remainder, presents a balanced approach that achieves the policy intent of the OCP to 
preserve parks and open space, contribute to a green connection between Knox Mountain Park 
and Stephen’s Coyote Ridge Regional Park, and provide a reasonable solution to the 
topographical and access challenges to the site.  As such, staff supports the proposal as 
described. 
                                                      
1 Ecoscape, 2007. Environmental Assessment Report and Sensitivity Analysis, prepared for DRS Ventures Ltd.  

34



OCP13-0003 & Z13-0004– Page 3 

 
 

4.0 Proposal 

4.1 Background 

The subject property at 1800 Crosby Road is located in the northern region of the City in the OCP 
Sector “Glenmore - Clifton – Dilworth”.  The subject property is a hillside property in the area 
commonly referred to as Glenmore and is 35.75 hectares in size.  Much of the site is 
topographically challenged with elevations ranging between approximately 423 metres at the low 
point located near the terminus of existing Crosby Road along the eastern boundary, and 
approximately 571 metres in the northwest corner.  This significant difference (148 meters) in 
elevation means that steep slopes are prevalent throughout the property with approximately 23.3 
hectares (65% of the area) in excess of 30% slopes.  Coarse and fine talus, exposed bedrock and 
rocky outcrops resulting in hazardous conditions and the sensitive habitats synonymous with 
steep slopes are dispersed throughout the site.  Other natural features on the subject property 
include three distinct wetlands which encompass approximately 1.15 hectares or 3.2% of the site 
area. (See Table 1). 
 
The Glenmore Highlands Area Structure Plan (ASP) was developed in 2000 for a 720 hectare 
subject area dominated by hillside terrain and containing a primarily coniferous woodland forest.  
The subject property was included in the Glenmore Highlands ASP which also includes the Wilden 
developments. 
 
The ASP addressed a modest level of detail with respect to the hillside development and 
contemplated two forms of residential development on this parent property in the form of 
clustered single family development at five units per hectare (5uph), and clustered single/multi-
family at 10 units per hectare (10uph) density. The Plan broadly considered potential locations 
for residential development and natural parks and open space at a coarse scale with detailed 
studies not having been completed.  Notably, the portion of the parcel under application was 
specifically designated as Parks and Open Space, and accordingly the Area Structure Plan has 
since become the basis for the line work used to generate the Future Land Use Map (Map 19.1) in 
the current Official Community Plan.   
 
Glenmore Road is the major north/south arterial in this region and would facilitate the majority 
of traffic movement generated by this development.  The subject property is located directly 
adjacent to an existing, well established community in Glenmore with homes having been 
established and occupied since the late 1970’s.  The subject property is presently only accessible 
from Crosby Road via Glenmore with no access from the west. 

4.2 Project Description 

The applicant is proposing to rezone the subject property, subdivide and develop a 1.99 hectare 
portion of the 35.75 hectare subject property.  The intent is to develop the lower site as a 12 
unit single family development.  As the OCP future land use for the proposed development parcel 
is not consistent with the proposed use, the primary consideration is the amendment of 1.99 ha 
of future land use designation to single / two unit residential use from major park/open space, 
with the exchange of approximately 5.6 ha of existing single / two unit residential according to 
the future land use designation, with a total of 14.27 ha being dedicated to the City of Kelowna 
as park.  The proposed lot configuration and proximity to existing established low density 
residential development is illustrated below.  
 

35



OCP13-0003 & Z13-0004– Page 4 

 
 

Map 1: Location and Configuration of Proposed Lot and Dwelling Units 

 
 
 
The applicants have undertaken a number of studies in support of their applications including 
geotechnical and environmental studies.  An environmental assessment was conducted in 2007 
for the parent parcel and quantifies the environmentally sensitive areas on the property.  The 
Environmentally Sensitive Area (ESA) results are showed in the table below. 
 

Table 1. Environmental Sensitivity Analysis 

Environmental Sensitivity Area (hectares) Percentage 

Very High 1.15 3.2% 

High 20.09 55.4% 

Moderate 14.09 38.9% 

Low 0.91 2.5% 

 
The environmental assessment conclusions correlate with the City’s Sensitive Ecosystem 
Inventory and the City’s Wetland Inventory.  As proposed, the majority of the development is 
sited on the only area that has a ‘low’ environmental sensitivity rating, however, the proposal 
will encroach on an area of high environmental sensitivity.  The parkland proposed for dedication 
is rated as high environmental sensitivity. 

4.3 Site Context 

The subject property is located between the established neighbourhoods of Glenmore and 
Wilden, within the Glenmore, Clifton, Dilworth Sector. The immediate adjacent zones and uses 
are indicated in the table below. 

 

36



OCP13-0003 & Z13-0004– Page 5 

 
 

Table 2: Adjacent Zoning and Land Uses 

Orientation Zoning Land Use 
North P3 – Parks & Open Space Natural Open Space 

East 
RU1 – Large Lot Housing 
RU2 – Medium Lot Housing 

Single Family Housing 

South 
A1 – Agricultural 1 / RU6 – Two Dwelling 
Residential 

Natural Open Space / Single/Two 
Dwelling Residential 

West 
RU2H – Medium Lot Housing (Hillside) 
A1 – Agricultural 1 

Single Family Housing 
Natural Open Space 

 

Site Location Maps 

Based on the Glenmore Highlands ASP, the parent parcel has been assigned future land use 

designations of Multi-family – Low Density, Single/Two Family Residential, and Park/Open Space, 

as shown on Map 2, below.  

Map 2: Future Land Uses 

 
 

The neighbourhood context and land use is shown below on Map 3. 

 
  

Crosby Road 

Wilden Ridge Dr 

Proposed Development Area 

1.99 ha 

 

Wetlands 

City of Kelowna 

Property 

Wilden 

37



OCP13-0003 & Z13-0004– Page 6 

 
 

Map 3: Land Use and Neighbourhood Context 

 

 

The site topography is shown in Map 3, below.  Each contour represents 5 metres of elevation. 

Map 4: Topography 

 

Proposed Development Area 

City of Kelowna Property 

Wilden 

Wilden 

38



OCP13-0003 & Z13-0004– Page 7 

 
 

 

Map 5:  Wetland, and Environmental / Hazardous Development Permit Areas 

 

 

4.4 Zoning Analysis 

The following table outlines the zoning requirements for RU2 – Medium Lot Housing: 

Zoning Analysis Table 

CRITERIA ZONE REQUIREMENTS PROPOSAL 

Existing Lot/Subdivision Regulations 

Lot Area 400 m2 405 – 500 m2 

Lot Width 13 m 13.007 – 13.507 m 

Lot Depth 30 m 30.02 – 38.402 m 

Development Regulations 

Height 9.5 m m 

Front Yard 4.5 m (6.0 to garage / carport) 4.5 m (6.0 to garage / carport) 

Side Yard (1 ½ storey portion) 1.5 m 1.5 m 

Side Yard (2 ½ storey portion) 1.8 m 1.8 m 

Rear Yard (1 ½ storey portion) 6.0 m 6.0 m 

Rear Yard (2 ½ storey portion) 7.5 m 7.5 m 

Other Regulations: 

 There shall be no more than one single detached house per lot. 

 Parking and Loading section 8 requirements will apply. 

 

 

Wetlands 

Proposed Development Area 

39



OCP13-0003 & Z13-0004– Page 8 

 
 

4.5 Public Consultation 

The applicant has undertaken a door to door public consultation program, for addresses within 50 
metres of the project site.  A letter, complete with the proposed OCP amendment package, was 
left if residents were not home, with contact information for both the applicant and the City of 
Kelowna file manager.  One letter was received by the City of Kelowna in response (attached). 

The applicant has provided a summary of the public consultation program (attached). 

5.0 Current Development Policies 

5.1 Kelowna Official Community Plan (OCP) 

The Kelowna Official Community Plan designates the location of the proposed development on 
the subject property as Major Park & Open Space.  Application OCP10-0001 has been made to 
change the OCP designation to facilitate the proposed residential development, and to change 
existing Single/Two Family Residential area to Major Park / Open Space. 

 
7.1 Hillside Policies2  

7.1.1 Hazardous Condition Review. Ensure that all development and activities in hillside 
areas are reviewed for compliance with City engineering standards, safety and protection 
and refer applications to the Province in accordance with applicable requirements.  
7.1.2 Alternative Hillside Standards. Consider, within the context of a Hazardous 
Condition Development Permit, alternative hillside development standards within Zoning 
Bylaw 8000 and the Subdivision, Development and Servicing Bylaw 7900. The intent is to 
minimize the effects of development on the natural environment of hillside areas, defined 
as lands in their natural state that have a slope angle of 10% and greater for a minimum 
height of 6 metres while preserving areas with slopes of 30% and greater. Effects to be 
minimized may include cuts and fills, tree cutting, regrading and the visual impact in 
general of urban development on hillsides;  
 
7.10 Natural Environment Policies3  

7.10.10 Maintaining Biodiversity. Seek to maintain ecological linkages and biodiversity, 
including wildlife movement corridors and aquatic and terrestrial pathways, in all land use 
and development decisions; 
7.10.12 Retention of Natural Areas. Encourage all development and infrastructure 
projects to conserve wetlands, wildlife habitat, trees or other indigenous vegetation. 
Encourage alternative development methods, such as considering increasing density, 
narrowing right-of-ways, or cluster housing;  

 
8.1 Housing Policies4 

8.1.18 Housing Agreements.  Support the use of housing agreements to assist in creating 
affordable and special needs housing. 
8.1.32 Higher Density for Affordable Housing. Consider support for development of land 
involving an OCP amendment to increase the density by no more than two increments to a 
maximum density designation of Multiple Unit Residential (Medium Density) for proposals 
where 75% of the housing meets the City’s definition of affordable housing and/or core 

                                                      
2 City of Kelowna Official Community Plan – Environment; p. 7-1. 
3
 City of Kelowna Official Community Plan – Environment; p. 7-13. 

4
 City of Kelowna Official Community Plan – Housing; pp. 8-3, 8-4, 8-5. 

40



OCP13-0003 & Z13-0004– Page 9 

 
 

needs housing as defined in the OCP (8.1.16 & 8.1.17). The development must meet the 
following conditions: 

 the density of the development can be sensitively integrated into the surrounding 
neighbourhood; 

 where a lot line abuts a lower density residential land uses designation, buildings 
facing this lot line within the development shall be stepped back such that there is 
no more than a one-storey height gain between these building frontages and the 
height permitted within the land uses assigned to adjacent parcels; and 

 height must be determined by the City as appropriate within the context of the 
adjacent land use designations; and 

 supporting infrastructure and park land is sufficient to accommodate the proposed 
development (or the developer is prepared to upgrade the necessary infrastructure 
and park land); and 

 a housing agreement must be entered into with the City and registered on title to 
secure the affordable dwellings for the long term. 

14.1 Parks and Leisure Policies5 

14.1.1 Parks and Open Space. Endeavour to provide a variety of parks and open spaces 
to meet the diverse needs of the community; 
14.1.28 Dedication of Natural Areas. At time of subdivision or rezoning, encourage 
landowners, where appropriate, to dedicate any significant natural areas / features for 
preservation or for public use;  
 

5.2 Glenmore Highlands Area Structure Plan (2000) 

Section 2.1.3 Wildlife6 

Wildlife Movement Corridors:  the ASP area wildlife movement occurs primarily in a north-
south direction between two areas of substantial habitat that are adjacent to the ASP 
area.  Knox Mountain Park is located to the south and Stephen’s Coyote Ridge Regional 
Park is situated to the north.  The maintenance of continuous vegetated corridors 
between these large reserves of natural habitat is critical to the maintenance of 
biodiversity and ecological viability within the ASP area. 

6.0 Technical Comments 

6.1 Development Engineering Branch 

The Development Engineering Branch has indicated the following items are required for the 
development.  Please refer to the attached memo for a full description of requirements.  In 
summary, the following is required: 

 Installation of a centralized mail delivery station; 

 A geotechnical report to address slope stability and hydrological issues; 

 Satisfactory arrangements regarding flows and sizing infrastructure with Glenmore Ellison 
Irrigation District (GEID);  

 Adequately sized sanitary sewer system; 

                                                      
5 City of Kelowna Official Community Plan – Parks and Leisure; pp. 14-1, 14-4. 
6 Glenmore Highlands Area Structure Plan, Section 2 Context & Existing Conditions; p. 21. 

41



OCP13-0003 & Z13-0004– Page 10 

 
 

 Adequately sized drainage system; 

 Grading plans; 

 Road dedication of Crosby Road Extension; 

 Power and telecommunication services and street lights; 

 Consulting Engineering Letter; 

 A Servicing Agreement, in accordance with Bylaw No. 7900; 

 Proposed Park dedicated to the City as a titled property and zoned P3 – Parks / Open 
Space; 

 Adequate road frontage to the park, including gating and signage; 

 Sidewalk; 

 Fuel reduction for forest health; and a 

 Fence between private property and the proposed park. 

6.2 Kelowna Fire Department 

Fire Department access, fire flows, and hydrants should be installed as per the BC Building Code 
and the City of Kelowna Subdivision Bylaw #7900. 

6.3 Parks and Building Planning Branch 

Parks has reviewed the development application and has provided the following comments and 
requirements: 
 

 The proposed park area shall be dedicated to the City as a titled property zoned P3 – 
Parks & Open Space and transferred as part of the Zoning Application; 

 The parkland shall be kept in a natural, undisturbed condition - no debris and garbage; no 
unauthorized tree cutting, no damage to natural vegetation, no material and construction 
storage and/or equipment parking; 

 Adequate road frontage will be required for the park entrance to provide public exposure, 
sightlines, security, and maintenance access; 

 The park road frontage will need to be fenced and gated for operations and security. 

 Fencing and vehicle gates shall be to City Standards; 

 5 parking stalls shall be provided for visitors to the park vehicles; 

 The sidewalk for the Crosby Road extension shall provide a connection between the 
existing sidewalk on Crosby and the front entrance to the park connecting to the existing 
old forestry road (e.g. park trail); 

 A  Blanket Statutory Right of Way (SROW) for public access shall be secured on the 
remainder of the upland portion of the subject property beyond the park dedication (e.g. 
future development lands); 

 A plan will be needed to address fuel reduction, forest health and the protection of 
significant characteristics of the forested area. All approved recommendations of the 
report shall be implemented prior to transfer in ownership of the lands to the City of 
Kelowna; and 

 To prevent private/public encroachment, the applicant will be required to delineate the 
private property lines adjacent to the park parcel with a minimum 1.2 m high (4’) high 

42



OCP13-0003 & Z13-0004– Page 11 

 
 

black vinyl chain link fence (or approved equivalent) located 150 mm (6”) within the 
private property. 

6.4 Policy and Planning Department 

There is a positive benefit to the community in terms of public parkland.  By continuing Crosby 
Rd into the subdivision, this would allow public access to the existing trails.  Adding a temporary 
right-of-way over the trails as a condition of zoning would ensure public access to the existing 
trails. 
 

6.5 Subdivision Approving Officer 

The Subdivision Approving Officer has provided the following comments: 

 Development Cost Charges (DCCs) are payable at final subdivision approval; and 

 Ensure that through the OCP and rezoning process that the future Hepner Road does not 
fall within the open space or park future land use.  More specifically at the southwest side 
of the property.  The parks and open space area is touching the road without buffering. 

6.6 FortisBC – Electric 

FortisBC Inc. – Electric has no land rights concerns at this time.  It should be noted that land 
rights issues may arise from the design process but can be dealt with at that time, prior to 
construction.  

6.7 Interior Health Authority 

Interior Health Authority is in support of this application. 

6.8 Irrigation District 

The GEID require upgrades to water and fire protection system adequate to accommodate the 
proposed 12 lot subdivision and to facilitate adequate fire protection. 

6.9 Shaw Cable 

The owner / developer to install an underground conduit system. 

6.10 Telus 

Telus will provide underground facilities to this development.  The developer will be required to 
supply and install conduit as per Telus policy.   

7.0 Application Chronology  

Date of Application Received:       January 16, 2013 
 
Agency Referral Comments Received:      March 15, 2013 
 
Updated S/D Plans Submitted:       August 8, 2013 
 

43



OCP13-0003 & Z13-0004– Page 12 

 
 

Applicant advised to put on hold subject to meeting with Real Estate Staff: Sept. 27, 2013 
 
Agreed to move forward:         Jan. 21, 2014 
 
Public Consultation:          March 28 to April 18, 2014 
 
 

 

Report prepared by: 

     
Melanie Steppuhn, Land Use Planner 
Subdivision, Agriculture & Environment Services  
 
 
Reviewed by:  

 Todd Cashin, Manager, Subdivision, Agriculture & Environment 
 
Approved for Inclusion: 

 Shelley Gambacort, Director, Community Planning & Real Estate 
 
 
 

Attachments:  

Subject Property Map (1 page) 
Site Plan (1 page) 
OCP Amendment ‘Map A’ (1 page) 
Zoning Amendment ‘Map B’ (1 page) 
Preliminary Lot Layout (1 page) 
Preliminary Lot Layout with Topography (1 page) 
Environmentally Sensitivity Analysis (Ecoscape, 2007) (1 page) 
Development Engineering Manager Memo (5 pages) 
Public Consultation Summary (17 pages) 

44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



REPORT TO COUNCIL 
 
 
 

Date: April 28, 2014 

RIM No. 1250-30 

To: City Manager 

From: Urban Planning, Community Planning & Real Estate (JM) 

Application: OCP14-0001 / Z14-0001 Owner: 
City of Kelowna (13 
lots) & Miles 
Vucicevic (1 lot) 

Address: 

576, 630, 690 Clement Ave  

1175, 1185 St. Paul St  

1170, 1166, 1160, 1156, 1150 Richter St  

Applicant: City of Kelowna 

Subject: Official Community Plan Amendment and Rezoning Application  

Existing OCP Designation: 
EDINST – Educational/Institutional 
COMM - Commercial 

Proposed OCP Designation: EDINST – Educational/Institutional   

Existing Zone: 
I2 – General Industrial 
I4 – Central Industrial 

Proposed Zone: P1 – Major Institutional  

 

1.0 Recommendation 

 THAT Official Community Plan Bylaw Amendment No. OCP14-0001 to amend Map 4.1 of the 
Kelowna 2030 – Official Community Plan Bylaw No. 10500, by changing the Future Land Use 
designation of: 

1. Lot 4, District Lot 139, ODYD, Plan 1021, located on 1160 Richter Street, Kelowna, BC  

2. Lot 5, District Lot 139, ODYD, Plan 1021, located on 1156 Richter Street, Kelowna, BC  

3. Lot 6, District Lot 139, ODYD, Plan 1021, located on 1150 Richter Street, Kelowna, BC  

from the COMM - Commercial designation to the EDINST – Educational/Institutional designation, 
as shown on Map “A” attached to the Report of Land Use Management Department dated April 
28, 2014, be considered by Council;  

AND THAT Council considers the Public Information Session public process to be appropriate 
consultation for the purpose of Section 879 of the Local Government Act, as outlined in the 
Report of the Land Use Management Department dated April 28, 2014; 

74



OCP14-0001 / Z14-0001 – Page 2 

 
 

THAT Rezoning Application No. Z14-0001 to amend City of Kelowna Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 by 
changing the zoning classification of: 

1. Lot A, District Lot 139, ODYD, Plan KAP63401, located on 1175 St. Paul Street, Kelowna, 
BC  

2. Lot B, District Lot 139, ODYD, Plan KAP63401, located on 1185 St. Paul Street, Kelowna, 
BC  

3. Lot 1, District Lot 139, ODYD, Plan 1021, located on 690 Clement Avenue, Kelowna, BC  

4. Lot 2, District Lot 139, ODYD, Plan 1021, located on 1170 Richter Street, Kelowna, BC  

5. Lot 3, District Lot 139, ODYD, Plan 1021, located on 1166 Richter Street, Kelowna, BC  

6. Lot 4, District Lot 139, ODYD, Plan 1021, located on 1160 Richter Street, Kelowna, BC  

7. Lot 5, District Lot 139, ODYD, Plan 1021, located on 1156 Richter Street, Kelowna, BC  

8. Lot 6, District Lot 139, ODYD, Plan 1021, located on 1150 Richter Street, Kelowna, BC  

9. Lot 7, District Lot 139, ODYD, Plan 1021, located on 630 Clement Avenue, Kelowna, BC  

10. Lot 8, District Lot 139, ODYD, Plan 1021, located on 630 Clement Avenue, Kelowna, BC  

11. Lot 9, District Lot 139, ODYD, Plan 1021, located on 630 Clement Avenue, Kelowna, BC  

12. Lot 10, District Lot 139, ODYD, Plan 1021, located on 576 Clement Avenue, Kelowna, BC  

13. Lot 11, District Lot 139, ODYD, Plan 1021, located on 576 Clement Avenue, Kelowna, BC  

14. Lot 12, District Lot 139, ODYD, Plan 1021, located on 576 Clement Avenue, Kelowna, BC  

from the I2 – General Industrial and I4 – Central Industrial zones to the P1 – Major Institutional 
zone, be considered by Council; 

AND THAT the Official Community Plan Bylaw Amendment Bylaw and the Zone Amending Bylaw 
be forwarded to a Public Hearing for further consideration; 

AND THAT final adoption of the Zone Amending Bylaw be considered subsequent to the 
requirements of the Development Engineering Branch being completed to their satisfaction; 

AND THAT final adoption of the Zone Amending Bylaw be considered subsequent to registration at 
the Land Titles Office of a plan of consolidation. 

2.0 Purpose   

To consider a proposal to amend the Official Community Plan (OCP) Future Land Use designation 
and to Rezone the subject properties in order to permit the development of the Kelowna Police 
Services Building. 

3.0 Urban Planning Department 

Urban Planning staff are supportive of the proposed OCP amendment and Rezoning to facilitate 
the development of the Kelowna Police Services Building on the subject site. The proposal is 
consistent with the overall objectives and policies of the OCP and with the priorities of Council 
for 2014. As a critical civic facility in Kelowna working to ensure the security of residents, the 
proposed Kelowna Police Services Building will contribute positively to the future of the city. It 
follows that the architecture and site design must reflect the importance of the institution in the 
community by balancing the need for a secure facility with the broader demand for a context-
sensitive design that demonstrates a strong relationship to the public realm. 

75



OCP14-0001 / Z14-0001 – Page 3 

 
 

While the process followed to date has varied from the City’s preferred approach where Zoning 
and Development Permit applications are processed concurrently, staff feel that the design 
requirements laid out through the Design-Build procurement methodology provide sufficient 
confidence to proceed through rezoning without a Development Permit. Under this scenario, 
should rezoning be granted, a Development Permit and Development Variance Permit will be 
required prior to obtaining a Building Permit for the project. 

4.0 Proposal 

4.1 Background 

To meet the current and future needs of the Royal Canadian Mounted Police (RCMP), the City 
intends to construct a new Kelowna Police Services Building. This high-profile civic facility will 
serve as the RCMP’s headquarters and will be a welcoming space for the community.  

At its Regular Meeting of December 2, 2013, Council directed staff to undertake the necessary 
Rezoning process to prepare for the development of the Kelowna Police Services Building. The 
Alternative Approval Process (AAP) conducted in order to proceed with the funding for the 
project has concluded successfully, and the project has a maximum budget allowance of $48M.  
Now that funding is secured, a Rezoning and OCP amendment is required in order to permit 
future development on the site. 

The project is proceeding using the Design-Build procurement method, and it is expected that 
the contract for construction will be awarded by December, 2014. As a key component of the 
Design-Build process, the City sets the key criteria that inform the eventual development on the 
site. Urban Planning staff have been involved since the early stages of the project in the 
development of the criteria. Having secured key design criteria through this process, staff are 
comfortable in allowing the Rezoning to proceed to final adoption without the need for a 
Development Permit. This is a unique approach to City projects that balances the high 
expectations for design from the City with the need for security of land use for proponents. A full 
Development Permit will be required prior to obtaining a Building Permit. 

In accordance with Council Policy No. 367, the applicant has held two public information sessions 
jointly with the Alternative Approval Process (AAP). These were held on March 6th and 10th, 2014, 
and just over 100 people attended. The focus of these information sessions was on the AAP 
process, but information respecting the zoning and OCP changes was displayed as well. Overall, 
the response from the public has been very positive. Of those 37 who submitted comments at the 
information sessions, only three were opposed. The three in opposition were related to the 
financing of the project. 

In addition, neighbours within a ½ block radius (70 letters) were sent notification of the proposed 
OCP amendment and Rezoning by mail. After two weeks, only two requests were received. The 
first requested clarification, but had no concerns, while the second had concerns about the truck 
turning radii in the lane at the north of the site. Staff are working to address this issue. 

4.2 Project Description 

The City of Kelowna is seeking to amend the OCP and to Rezone the subject properties in order 
to allow for the development of the proposed Kelowna Police Services building. While the 
detailed design and site layout for the building has not been completed, there are several key 
features and requirements as follows: 

- The main public entrance will be located at the corner of Richter St. & Clement Ave. 
- The Building will be sited towards the southeast corner of the site 
- The Building will be approximately 8,361m2 (90,000 ft2) 

76



OCP14-0001 / Z14-0001 – Page 4 

 
 

- The Building will likely be between 2-3 storeys in height 
- Surface parking will be provided for the public, staff, and for fleet vehicles 
- Staff surface parking will be made available to the public outside of regular business hours 
- Public parking will be accessed from Richter Street 
- Staff parking access will be accessed from St. Paul Street 
- Site design is focused on landscape and public realm interface along Clement Ave. & 

Richter St. 

As part of the City’s effort to set the parameters of the development and to anticipate likely 
development scenarios, including security needs, staff expect several variances to come forward 
alongside the final building design proposal. Staff anticipate that the variances will be primarily 
for vehicle parking, recognizing the very unique parking demands of the Kelowna Police Services 
building. 

4.3 Site Context 

The 14 subject properties make up an area of approximately 1.64ha and are all located on the 
north side of Clement Avenue, between Richter and St. Paul Streets. The City presently owns 13 
of the 14 properties, with the property at 1150 Richter Street being privately owned. The City is 
in negotiations for ownership of the final lot and has authorization from the current owner to 
proceed with this application. 

At present, the lots exhibit little or no development. Some of the staging for the Bernard Avenue 
project was conducted on the site. The two sites fronting St. Paul Street contain some outdoor 
vehicle storage. The lots fronting Richter contain a mix of industrial uses and automotive sales, 
principally conducted outdoors.  

The lots are located in the Central City sector of Kelowna within a stretch of lands that act as a 
transition from the primarily residential development to the south, and the Downtown urban 
centre context to the west through to the industrial development to the north. Clement Avenue 
has become a critical transportation corridor both for downtown and for businesses in the north 
end of the city. As such, properties fronting Clement Avenue are slowly redeveloping.  

Specifically, adjacent land uses are as follows: 

Orientation Zoning Land Use 

North I4 – Central Industrial Various small industrial uses 

East 
I 2 – General Industrial 
I4 – Central Industrial 

BC Tree Fruits, various warehousing 
industrial uses 

South RU2 – Medium Lot Housing Single detached development 

West I4 – Central Industrial Train Station Pub, various industrial uses 

 

Subject Property Map: Subject Properties  

77



OCP14-0001 / Z14-0001 – Page 5 

 
 

 

4.4 Zoning Analysis Table 

Zoning Analysis Table 

CRITERIA P1 ZONE REQUIREMENTS PROPOSAL 

Existing Lot/Subdivision Regulations 
Lot Area 460 m2 1.64 ha 

Lot Width 13.0 m exceeds 

Lot Depth 30.0 m exceeds  

Development Regulations 
Floor Area Ratio 2.0 TBD 

Site Coverage 50% TBD 

Height 22.0 m or 6 storeys TBD 

Front Yard (south) 6.0 m TBD 

Side Yard (east) 
4.5 m or 6.0 m for a flanking 

street 
TBD 

Side Yard (west) 
4.5 m or 6.0 m for a flanking 

street 
TBD 

Rear Yard (north) 7.5 m TBD 

Other Regulations 
Minimum Parking Requirements 10 per 100 m2 GFA TBD 

Bicycle Parking 
Class 1: 1 per 25 employees 

Class 2: 1 per public entrance 
TBD 

Loading Space 1 per 2,800m2 GFA TBD 

Landscaping Requirements: 
Front 
Side 
Rear 

 
Level 2 
Level 3 
Level 3 

TBD 

78



OCP14-0001 / Z14-0001 – Page 6 

 
 

5.0 Current Development Policies   

5.1 Kelowna Official Community Plan (OCP) 

The Future Land Use map of the OCP (Map 4.1) anticipates the development of the Kelowna 
Police Services Building on the subject lands, therefore all but three of the subject properties are 
designated Educational/Institutional.  

Staff have reviewed this application, and it may move forward without affecting either the City’s 
Financial Plan or Waste Management Plan. Funding for the project has been secured through the 
Alternative Approval Process. This process concluded on March 28, 2014. Council received the 
Certificate of Sufficiency for the borrowing on Monday, March 31, 2014 at its Regular Meeting and 
granted approval for the project to proceed.   

5.2 2014: Moving Opportunities Forward 

Advance the Police Services Building project. 

6.0 Technical Comments   

6.1 Building & Permitting Department 

No comment. Comments will be provided at Development Permit stage. 

6.2 Development Engineering Department 

See attached Memoranda, dated February 25, 2014. 

6.3 Fire Department 

No concerns. 

6.4 Interior Health Authority 

Provided that these lots are serviced by Community Sanitary sewer and water, this office has no 
concerns with liquid waste and drinking water. 

Interior Health is in support of this application. 

6.5 RCMP 

No concerns. 

6.6 Shaw Cable 

Shaw Communications’ interests are unaffected. The applicant should contact Shaw regarding 
future cable services. 

6.7 TELUS 

TELUS will provide underground facilities to this development.  Developer will be required to 
supply and install conduit as per TELUS policy. 

6.8 FortisBC (electric) 

There are primary distribution facilities within Clement Avenue and to the proposed consolidated 
lot's northwest corner.  The applicant is responsible for costs associated with any change to the 

79



OCP14-0001 / Z14-0001 – Page 7 

 
 

subjects' existing service, if any, as well as the provision of appropriate land rights where 
required.  

Otherwise, FortisBC Inc. (Electric) has no concerns with this circulation 

7.0 Application Chronology   

Date of Application Received: January 10, 2014  
 
Public Information Sessions:  March 6 & 10, 2014 
 
Neighbourhood Mailout:  April 1-15, 2014 

Report prepared by: 

     
James Moore, Planner II 
 
 

Reviewed by:    Ryan Smith, Urban Planning Manager 
 

Approved for Inclusion:  D. Gilchrist, Div. Dir. of Community Planning & Real Estate 
 

Attachments:   

Subject Property Map 
Conceptual Site Plan 
Context/Site Photos 
Development Engineering Memoranda, dated February 25, 2014 

80



81



82



83



84



85



86



87



88



89



90


	Agenda
	3.1 2014-05-05 Report - OCP14-0009 Proposed Miscellaneous Amendments (BL10943).docx
	3.1 2014-05-05 Attachment 1 - OCP14-0009 Proposed Miscellaneous Amendments.docx
	3.1 2014-05-05 Attachment 2 - OCP14-0009 Proposed OCP Evaluation Checklist.docx
	3.1 2014-05-05 Attachment 3 - OCP14-0009 Map 1.pdf
	3.1 2014-05-05 Attachment 4 - OCP14-0009 Map 2.pdf
	3.1 2014-05-05 Attachment 5 - OCP14-0009 Map 3.pdf
	3.1 2014-05-05 Attachment 6 - OCP14-0009 Map 4.pdf
	3.1 2014-05-05 Attachment 7 - OCP14-0009 Map 5.pdf
	3.1 2014-05-05 Attachment 8 - OCP14-0009 Map 6.pdf
	3.1 2014-05-05 Attachment 9 - OCP14-0009 Map 7.pdf
	3.1 2014-05-05 Attachment 10 - OCP14-0009 Map 8.pdf
	3.1 2014-05-05 Attachment 11 - OCP14-0009 Map 9.pdf
	3.1 2014-05-05 Attachment 12 - OCP14-0009 Map 10.pdf
	3.2 2014 05 05 Report Z14-0005 669 McClure Rd.docx
	3.2 2014 05 05 Attachments Z14-0005 669 McClure Rd.pdf
	3.3 2014 05 05 Report Z13-0004 OCP13-0003 1800 Crosby Rd.docx
	3.3 2014 04 29 Attachments Z13-0004 OCP13-0003 1800 Crosby Rd.pdf
	3.4 2014 04 28 Report OCP14-0001 Z14-0001 .docx
	3.4 2014 04 28 Attachments OCP14-0001 Z14-0001.pdf

